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On behalf of our Board of Directors, Management, and Staff, we present the 2025 Annual Report of TEB 
Bancorp, Inc., the holding company for The Equitable Bank,  

During the 2025 fiscal year, the Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) reduced the benchmark 
borrowing rate by one hundred basis points between September and December 2024, based on easing 
inflation concerns.  

The rate cuts allowed The Bank to make meaningful progress repricing maturing assets and liabilities 
during the year increasing the overall net interest margin (NIM). The improvement in NIM allowed the 
Bank to realize an improvement in quarter-over-quarter reduction in losses in the second half of the 
fiscal year. Despite this progress, the Bank recorded a net loss of $1.31 million for the year. 

We remain encouraged by our strong capital and asset quality. Tier One capital to average assets stood 
at 9.67% at year-end, keeping us well capitalized. Non-performing loans were a low of 0.14% of total 
loans, reflecting the strength of our loan portfolio. 

As we move into the new fiscal year, we remain committed to serving Southeastern Wisconsin and are 
grateful for the trust our stakeholders continue to place in us. We welcome your questions and 
continued engagement as we pursue the core objectives of TEB Bancorp, Inc. and The Equitable Bank, 
S.S.B. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Thomas Sattler       Jennifer Provancher 
President and CEO       Chairman of the Board 

To our Valued Shareholders:
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
 
 
To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of TEB Bancorp Inc.: 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TEB Bancorp, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the Company), which 
comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, and the related consolidated statements of 
operations, comprehensive loss, changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related 
notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Company as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet 
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern 
within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Baker Tilly Advisory Group, LP and Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, are members of the global network of Baker Tilly 
International Ltd., the members of which are separate and independent legal entities. Baker Tilly US, LLP is a licensed CPA firm that 
provides assurance services to its clients. Baker Tilly Advisory Group, LP and its subsidiary entities provide tax and consulting services 
to their clients and are not licensed CPA firms. 
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material 
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements. 
 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the 
audit. 
 

 

Milwaukee, Wisconsin 
September 11, 2025 
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TEB BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
 

       

      June 30, 2025      June 30, 2024 

ASSETS        
Cash and due from banks  $  4,476,296  $  5,730,891 
Federal funds sold    237,677    234,765 

Cash and cash equivalents     4,713,973     5,965,656 
       
Interest bearing deposits in banks     36,032     14,199 
Available for sale securities - stated at fair value     24,964,456     27,363,579 
Loans, less allowance for credit losses of $2,609,444 and $2,700,366 at 
June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024, respectively     279,848,598     289,774,066 
Loans held for sale     1,782,300     480,000 
Other real estate owned, net     115,895     — 
Right of use asset    421,703    514,383 
Pension asset    3,202,546    2,833,316 
Premises and equipment, net     6,846,088     7,204,949 
Federal Home Loan Bank stock     1,053,100     1,053,100 
Accrued interest receivable and other assets    1,910,884    1,857,175 
TOTAL ASSETS  $  324,895,575  $  337,060,423 
       

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY       
LIABILITIES           
Deposits           

Demand  $  87,321,902  $  86,777,118 
Savings and money markets     60,619,150     61,805,957 
Certificates of deposit    138,548,910    152,348,020 

Total Deposits     286,489,962     300,931,095 
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings     4,000,000     — 
Advance payments by borrowers for property taxes and insurance     3,464,607     3,397,760 
Lease liability    433,980    526,788 
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities    2,273,581    3,622,817 

Total Liabilities    296,662,130    308,478,460 
       
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY           
Preferred stock ($0.01 par value, 5,000,000 authorized, no shares issued or 
outstanding as of June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024, respectively)     —     — 
Common stock ($0.01 par value, 20,000,000 authorized, 2,624,343 issued and 
outstanding as of June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024)     26,243     26,243 
Additional paid in capital     11,319,328     11,319,328 
Retained earnings     20,050,189     21,363,263 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss    (3,162,315)    (4,126,871)

Total Stockholders’ Equity    28,233,445     28,581,963 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY  $  324,895,575  $  337,060,423 
 

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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TEB BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
 

       

  For the year  For the year 
  ended June 30,   ended June 30,  
  2025      2024 
INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME          

Interest and fees on loans  $  13,632,401  $  13,757,089 
Interest and dividends on investment securities     770,355     831,055 
Interest on federal funds sold and due from banks     50,471     123,175 
Interest on deposits in banks     4,287     3,031 

Total Interest and Dividend Income     14,457,514     14,714,350 
       
INTEREST EXPENSE           

Interest on deposits     6,255,436     6,683,803 
Interest on Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings     203,728     161,777 
Interest on federal funds purchased     455     12 

Total Interest Expense     6,459,619     6,845,592 
       
Net interest income before provision for (recapture of) credit losses     7,997,895     7,868,758 

Provision for (recapture of) credit losses     —     (175,000)
Net interest income after provision for (recapture of) credit losses     7,997,895     8,043,758 
       
NON-INTEREST INCOME           

Service fees on deposits     312,540     318,380 
Service fees on loans     187,437     166,731 
Gain on sales of mortgage loans     1,122,001     813,437 
Income on sale of uninsured products     815,861     522,455 
Other income     16,047     13,603 

Total Non-Interest Income     2,453,886     1,834,606 
       
NON-INTEREST EXPENSES           

Compensation and benefits     7,119,125     7,324,835 
Occupancy     2,149,943     2,012,628 
Advertising     111,875     126,223 
Data processing services     1,136,572     1,159,081 
FDIC assessment     214,885     194,658 
Cost of operations for other real estate owned     6,744     1,466 
Insurance expense     97,728     90,673 
Professional fees     294,783     256,325 
Other expenses     633,175     700,214 

Total Non-Interest Expenses     11,764,830     11,866,103 
       
Loss before income taxes     (1,313,049)    (1,987,739)

Income tax expense     25     25 
NET LOSS  $  (1,313,074) $  (1,987,764)
       
Basic loss per share  $  (0.50) $  (0.76)
Diluted loss per share  $  (0.50) $  (0.76)
 

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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TEB BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 
 

       

        
  For the year  For the year 
  ended June 30,  ended June 30, 
     2025      2024 
Net loss  $  (1,313,074) $  (1,987,764)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax           

Unrealized gains/losses on securities           
Net unrealized holding gains arising during the year     909,424     455,783 
Tax effect     —     — 

Change in pension obligation     55,132     1,009,949 
Tax effect    —    — 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax     964,556     1,465,732 
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS  $  (348,518) $  (522,032)
 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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TEB BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
 

                  

               Accumulated      
       Additional     Other    
  Number of Common Paid-In  Retained  Comprehensive   
      Shares      Stock      Capital      Earnings     Loss      Total 
BALANCES -                                            
July 1, 2023    2,624,343  $  26,243  $ 11,319,328  $ 24,701,027  $  (5,592,603)  $ 30,453,995 
                 

Net loss          (1,987,764)     (1,987,764)
Adoption of ASU 2016-13         (1,350,000)     (1,350,000)
Other Comprehensive 
Income, net of tax            1,465,732    1,465,732 

BALANCES - 
June 30, 2024    2,624,343  $  26,243  $ 11,319,328  $ 21,363,263  $  (4,126,871) $ 28,581,963 
                  

Net loss          (1,313,074)     (1,313,074)
Other Comprehensive 
Income, net of tax            964,556    964,556 

BALANCES - 
June 30, 2025    2,624,343  $  26,243  $ 11,319,328  $ 20,050,189  $  (3,162,315) $ 28,233,445 
 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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TEB BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
       

  For the year  For the year 
  ended  ended 
  June 30, 2025      June 30, 2024 
CASH FLOWS FROM  OPERATING ACTIVITIES          

Net loss  $  (1,313,074) $  (1,987,764)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash flows used in operating activities       

Provision for (recapture of) credit losses     —     (175,000)
Depreciation     495,884     487,096 
Net amortization and accretion     8,461     10,050 
Origination of mortgage loans held for sale     (67,273,534)    (47,224,649)
Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans held for sale     67,093,235     48,560,808 
Gain on sale of mortgage loans held for sale     (1,122,001)    (813,437)
Loss on sale or disposal of assets, net    672    — 
Right of use asset amortization    92,680    91,018 
Changes in assets and liabilities:       

Accrued interest receivable and other assets     (53,709)    803,368 
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities     (1,329,018)    292,022 
Pension Asset    (369,230)   (1,101,513)
Leases liability    (92,808)   (90,142)
Net cash flows used in operating activities     (3,862,442)    (1,148,143)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES           
Proceeds from maturities or calls of securities available for sale     3,300,000     2,930,000 
Purchase of securities available for sale     —     (375,000)
Change in loans     9,857,198     5,478,000 
Change from purchase of FHLB stock     —     (21,900)
Change in interest bearing deposits in banks     (21,833)    12,372 
Capital expenditures on other real estate owned    (12,625)   — 
Purchase of premises and equipment, net     (137,695)    (275,716)

Net cash flows provided by investing activities     12,985,045     7,747,756 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES           

Net decrease in deposits     (14,441,133)    (5,933,308)
FHLB advance proceeds     1,149,128,000     794,418,000 
FHLB advance repayments     (1,145,128,000)    (794,418,000)
Change in advance payments by borrowers for property taxes and insurance     66,847     (36,002)

Net cash flows used in financing activities     (10,374,286)    (5,969,310)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents     (1,251,683)    630,303 

       
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR     5,965,656     5,335,353 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF PERIOD  $  4,713,973  $  5,965,656 
       
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES           

Cash paid for interest  $  4,687,909  $  5,858,930 
Loans transferred to other real estate owned     (103,270)    — 

 

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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NOTE 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Organization  

On April 30, 2019, The Equitable Bank, S.S.B. (the “Bank”) converted to a stock savings bank and is now organized in the mutual 
holding company structure. The Bank issued all of its outstanding stock to a new holding company, TEB Bancorp, Inc. (the “Bancorp”), 
which sold 1,309,547 shares of common stock to the public at $10.00 per share, representing 49.9% of its outstanding shares of common 
stock for gross proceeds of approximately $13.1 million. The net proceeds received were approximately $11.4 million after offering costs. 
TEB Bancorp, Inc. is organized as a corporation under the laws of the State of Maryland. The Bank utilized $100,000 of proceeds 
received from the offering as initial capitalization of TEB MHC. TEB MHC has been organized as a mutual holding company under the 
laws of the State of Wisconsin and owns 1,314,796 shares, or 50.1% of the outstanding common stock of TEB Bancorp, Inc.  

The Bank is a state-chartered savings bank providing a full range of financial services. The Bank grants commercial, residential and 
consumer loans, and accepts deposits from customers primarily in the Metropolitan Milwaukee area, which is in southeastern Wisconsin. 
The Bank is subject to competition from other financial institutions and nonfinancial institutions providing financial products. 
Additionally, the Bank is subject to the regulations of certain regulatory agencies and undergoes periodic examination by those regulatory 
agencies.  

All depositors who had liquidation rights with respect to the Bank as of the effective date of the reorganization continue to have such 
rights solely with respect to TEB MHC so long as they continue to hold their deposit accounts with the Bank. In addition, all persons who 
become depositors of the Bank subsequent to the reorganization will have such liquidation rights with respect to TEB MHC.  

At June 30, 2025, the significant assets of TEB Bancorp, Inc. were the capital stock of the Bank and a deposit account held at the Bank. 
The liabilities of TEB Bancorp, Inc. were insignificant. The Company is subject to regulation and examination by the Board of Governors 
of the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve Board”).  

Effective May 7, 2022, the Company is no longer subject to the financial reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 
as amended (the “Exchange Act”). 

Principles of Consolidation  

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) and include the accounts and operations of TEB Bancorp, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, the 
Bank, Equitable Investment Corp., and Equity Credit Corp. (the “Company”). All significant intercompany accounts and transactions 
have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Use of Estimates  

In preparing the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, management of the Company is required to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the consolidated balance sheet and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the 
determination of the allowance for credit losses, the pension actuarial assumptions, and the valuation of deferred tax assets.  

Revenue Recognition 

Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASC 606”), establishes principles for 
reporting information about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts to 
provide goods or services recognized as performance obligations are satisfied. 
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The majority of the Company’s revenue-generating transactions are not subject to ASC 606, including all interest and dividend income 
generated from financial instruments. Certain noninterest income items, including gain on sales of loans, gain on sales of securities, and 
other noninterest income have been evaluated and determined to not fall within the scope of ASC 606. Elements of noninterest income 
that fall within the scope of ASC 606 are as follows: 

Service charges and other fees  The Company earns fees from its deposit customers for transaction-based, account maintenance, 
and overdraft services. Management reviewed the deposit account agreements and determined that the agreements can be terminated at 
any time by either the Company or the account holder. Transaction fees, such as wires and overdraft charges, are settled the day the 
performance obligation is satisfied. The Company’s monthly service charges and maintenance fees are for services provided to the 
customer on a monthly basis and are considered a series of services that have the same pattern of transfer each month. The review of 
service charges assessed on deposit accounts included the amount of variable consideration that is a part of the monthly charges. It was 
found that the waiver of service charges due to insufficient funds and dormant account fees is immaterial and did not require a change in 
the accounting treatment for these fees under the new revenue standards. 

Interchange fees  Customers use a Bank-issued debit card to purchase goods and services, and the Company earns interchange 
fees on those transactions, typically a percentage of the sale amount of the transaction. The Company records the amount due when it 
receives the settlement from the payment network. Payments from the payment network are received and recorded into income on a daily 
basis. These funds are included in “Service fees on deposits” on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. There are no contingent debit 
card interchange fees recorded by the Company that could be subject to a clawback in future periods. 

Cash and Due From Banks  

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances due from banks and federal funds sold, all of 
which mature within 90 days. The Company maintains amounts due from banks, which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. 
The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts.  

Interest Bearing Deposits in Banks  

Interest bearing deposits in banks mature within one year and are carried at cost, which approximates fair value.  

Securities  
 
Available for sale securities are stated at fair value and unrealized holding gains and losses on available for sale securities are reported as 
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of applicable deferred income tax and adjusted for any applicable valuation 
allowance, a separate component of equity. Gains or losses on the sale of securities, if any, are determined on the specific identification 
method and recorded in the non-interest income section of the Statements of Operations. Securities transactions are recorded on the trade 
date.  
 
Allowance for Credit Losses – Available for Sale Securities  
 
For available for sale securities in an unrealized loss position, the Company first assesses whether it intends to sell, or it is more likely 
than not that it will be required to sell, the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis. If either of these criteria are met, the 
Company will write down the security to fair value as a component of current period earnings. For available for sale securities that do not 
meet either of these criteria, the Company determines whether the decline in value has resulted from credit losses or other factors. This 
evaluation takes into consideration current market conditions, issuer rating changes and trends, the credit worthiness of the obligator of 
the security, current analysts’ evaluations, and failure of the issuer to make scheduled interest or principal payments. If the Company 
determines a credit loss exists, the present value of cash flows expected to be collected are compared to the amortized cost of the security. 
If the present value of cash flows expected to be collected are less than the amortized cost, an allowance for credit losses is recorded, 
which is limited by the amount the fair value is less than the amortized cost basis. Any impairment that is not recorded through an 
allowance for credit losses is recognized in other comprehensive income (loss). Accrued interest on available for sale securities totaled 
$197,685 as of June 30, 2025 and $202,846 as of June 30, 2024 and is excluded from the estimate of credit losses. Changes in the 
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allowance for credit losses on investments are recorded as a provision for, or recapture of, credit loss. Losses are charged against the 
allowance when management believes the security is uncollectible or when either of the criteria regarding intent or requirement to sell is 
met. 
 
Loans  

Loans are carried at the unpaid principal balance adjusted for deferred loan fees and costs and charge-offs, reduced for the allowance for 
credit losses. Loan origination and commitment fees and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and the net amounts amortized 
as an adjustment of the related loan’s yield over the contractual life of the related loan.  

Interest on loans is accrued on the unpaid principal balances as earned. Loans are normally placed on nonaccrual status when 
contractually past due 90 days or more as to interest or principal payments. Additionally, whenever management becomes aware of facts 
or circumstances that may adversely impact the collectability of principal or interest on a loan, it is management’s practice to place such 
loan on nonaccrual status immediately, rather than delaying such action until the loan becomes 90 days past due. When a loan is placed on 
nonaccrual, previously accrued and uncollected interest on such loan is reversed, amortization of related loan fees is suspended, and 
income is recorded only to the extent that loan payments are subsequently received in cash and a determination has been made that the 
principal balance of the loan is collectible. If collectability of the principal is in doubt, payments received are applied to loan principal.  

The Company may modify loans to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty and grant certain concessions that include principal 
forgiveness, a term extension, an other-than-insignificant payment delay, an interest rate reduction, or a combination of these concessions. 
An assessment of whether the borrower is experiencing financial difficulty is made at the time of loan modification. Upon the Company’s 
determination that a modified loan has subsequently been deemed uncollectible, the loan is written off. Therefore the amortized cost basis 
of the loan is reduced by the uncollectible amount and the allowance for credit losses is adjusted by the same amount. 

Loans Held for Sale  

Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost or estimated market value in the aggregate. 
Net unrealized losses are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to operations. All sales are made without recourse.  

Allowance for Credit Losses - Loans  

Under the current expected credit loss (“CECL”) model, the allowance for credit losses (“ACL”) is a valuation allowance that is deducted 
from the loans’ amortized cost basis to present the net amount expected to be collected on the loans. Loans are charged off against the 
allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed.  

Management estimates the ACL balance using relevant available information, from internal and external sources, relating to past events, 
current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. Historical credit loss experience provides the basis for the estimation of 
expected credit losses. Adjustments to historical loss information are made for differences in current loan-sprecific risk characteristics 
such as differences in underwriting standards, portfolio mix, delinquency level, or term as well as changes in environmental conditions, 
such as changes in unemployment rates, property values, or other relevant factors. 

The Company measures the ACL of financial assets on a collective portfolio segment basis when the financial assets share similar risk 
characteristics. The Company has identified the following portfolio segments of financial assets with similar risk characteristics for 
measuring expected credit losses: 

1-4 family residential: 
1-4 family residential (1st lien): The exposures in this category consist of loans secured by both owner-occupied and non-owner-occupied 
dwellings. These loans are generally to individuals and are underwritten by evaluating the credit history of the borrower, the ability of the 
borrower to meet the debt service requirements of the loan and total debt obligations, the underlying collateral, and the loan to collateral 



TEB BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 

  11 

value. Residential real estate loans are affected by the local residential real estate market, the local economy, and, for variable rate 
mortgages, movement in indices tied to these loans.  

1-4 family residential (Jr. lien): The exposures in this category consist of loans secured by 1-4 family dwellings with the Bank having a 
subordinate lien position. The loans are primarily home equity loans. These loans are generally to individuals and are underwritten by 
evaluating the credit history of the borrower, the ability of the borrower to meet the debt service requirements of the loan and total debt 
obligations, the underlying collateral, and the loan to collateral value. 

1-4 family revolving: The exposures in this category consist of loans secured by 1-4 family dwellings that have a revolving structure, 
home equity lines of credit. These loans are generally to individuals and are underwritten by evaluating the credit history of the borrower, 
the ability of the borrower to meet the debt service requirements of the loan and total debt obligations, the underlying collateral, and the 
loan to collateral value. 

Multifamily: Exposures in this category consist of loans secured by multifamily structures having at least five dwelling units. Multifamily 
loans are made based primarily on the historical and projected cash flow of the subject multifamily property, with assumptions made for 
vacancy rates. Cash flows and ultimate loan performance rely on the receipt of rental income from the tenants of the property, who are 
themselves subject to fluctuations in national and local economic and unemployment trends. 

1-4 family residential construction: Exposures in this category consist of construction loans for both owner-occupied and non-owner-
occupied dwellings. These loans are generally to individuals and are underwritten by evaluating the credit history of the borrower, the 
ability of the borrower to meet the debt service requirements of the loan and total debt obligations, the underlying collateral, and the loan 
to collateral value. 

Other construction, development, and land: Exposures in this category consist of loans secured by land and/or properties in construction, 
excluding 1-4 family dwellings. Repayment of these loans can be dependent on the sale of the property to third parties or the successful 
completion of the improvements by the builder for the end user. Construction loans also run the risk that improvements will not be 
completed on time or in accordance with specifications and projected costs. 

Nonfarm nonresidential: 
Owner-occupied nonfarm nonresidential: Exposures in this category consist of loans secured by commercial real estate properties 
tenanted by the owner. Financial information is obtained from borrowers to evaluate cash flow sufficiency to service debt and is 
periodically updated during the life of the loan. Loan performance may be adversely affected by factors impacting the general economy or 
conditions specific to the underlying business.  

Other nonfarm nonresidential: Exposures in this category consist of loans secured by commercial real estate properties leased out to a 
third party by the owner. Most loans in this category are self-storage facilities and assisted living facilities. Financial information is 
obtained from borrowers to evaluate cash flow sufficiency to service debt and is periodically updated during the life of the loan. Loan 
performance may be adversely affected by factors impacting the general economy or conditions specific to the real estate market, such as 
geographic location and/or property type. 

Commercial and industrial: Exposures in this category consist of loans to business customers and do not have a real estate component, 
such as lines of credit or equipment loans. Financial information is obtained from borrowers to evaluate cash flow sufficiency to service 
debt and is periodically updated during the life of the loan. Loan performance may be adversely affected by factors impacting the general 
economy or conditions specific to the underlying business. 

Consumer loans: 
Credit card loans: Exposures in this category consist of customer credit card balances. 

Auto loans: Exposures in this category consist of customer auto loan balances. 
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Other consumer loans: Exposures in this category consist of non-secured loans to consumers. 

Loans that do not share risk characteristics are evaluated on an individual basis. Loans evaluated individually are not also included in the 
collective evaluation. When management determines that foreclosure is probable, expected credit losses are based on the fair value of the 
collateral at the reporting date, adjusted for selling costs as appropriate. Collateral dependent loans refer to loans where the borrower is 
experiencing financial difficulties, and repayment is expected to be provided substantially through the operation or sale of the collateral. 
All individually evaluated loans are considered collateral dependent. 

Expected credit losses are estimated over the contractual term of the loans, adjusted for expected prepayments when appropriate. The 
contractual term excludes expected extensions, renewals, and modifications unless the extension or renewal options are included in the 
original or modified contract at the reporting date and are not unconditionally cancellable by the Company. 

The estimated remaining life of each pool is determined using the Company’s loan-level historical data. The Company’s historical call 
report data is utilized for historical loss rate calculations, and the lookback period for each collectively evaluated loan pool is determined 
by management based upon the estimated remaining life of the pool adjusted by estimated prepayment factors. Forecasted historical loss 
rates are calculated using the Company’s historical data based on the lookback period determined by management. 

The quantitative analysis described above is supplemented with other qualitative factors based on the risks present for each collectively 
evaluated loan pool. Qualitative factor adjustments may increase or decrease management’s estimate of expected credit losses. 
Adjustments will not be made for information that has already been considered and included in the quantitative component. Qualitative 
loss factors are based on management’s judgment of company, market, industry or business specific data, changes in loan composition, 
performance trends, regulatory changes, and other asset-specific risk characteristics.  

The Company excludes accrued interest receivable from the amortized cost basis of loans when estimating credit losses and when 
presenting required disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Accrued interest on loans totaling $954,372 at June 30, 2025 and 
$955,219 at June 30, 2024 was excluded from the amortized cost basis of loans and is included in accrued interest receivable on the 
consolidated balance sheet. 

Other Real Estate Owned, Net  

Other real estate owned is initially recorded at the fair market value of the real estate acquired less the estimated costs to sell the real 
estate at the date title is received, establishing a new cost basis, with any write-down charged to the ACL. Costs relating to development 
or improvement of property are capitalized up to the fair value of the property. Valuations are periodically performed by management and 
independent third parties and a charge to expense is taken if the carrying value of a property exceeds its fair value less estimated costs to 
sell. Income and expense related to the operations of other real estate owned is recorded net in “Cost of operations of other real estate 
owned” as a component of non-interest expenses on the consolidated statements of operations. Gains and losses on the sale of other real 
estate owned are recorded in “Gain on sale of other real estate owned” as a component of non-interest income in the consolidated 
statements of operations.  

Leases 

The Company is the lessee in two lease contracts for real estate which are determined to be operating leases. The Company records leases 
on the consolidated balance sheets in the form of a right of use asset, which represents our right to use an underlying asset for the lease 
term, and lease liabilities, which represent our obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease, both of which are recognized 
based on the present value of the future minimum lease payments over the lease term, including all extension options, at the date of 
adoption and any subsequent lease extensions or commencements. The discount rate used in determining the lease liability is based upon 
incremental borrowing rates the Company could obtain for similar loans as of the date of commencement, or as of the date of adoption if 
the commencement date of the lease is prior to this date, or renewal. Leases with a lease term of 12 months or less at inception are not 
recorded on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet and are expensed on a straight-line basis over the the lease term in the Company’s 
consolidated statements of operations. 
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Premises and Equipment, Net  

Premises and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense is 
provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the asset for financial reporting purposes, and the straight-line and 
accelerated methods for income tax purposes. Amortization of leasehold improvements is provided on the straight-line method over the 
lesser of the term of the respective lease or the estimated economic life of the improvements.  

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock  

The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) system. Members are required to own a certain amount of FHLB stock 
based on the Bank’s level of borrowings from the FHLB and other factors, and may invest in additional amounts of FHLB stock. The 
Bank’s investment in FHLB of Chicago stock meets the minimum amount required by current regulations and is carried at cost, which 
approximates fair value. FHLB stock is evaluated quarterly for impairment. Based on management’s evaluation, no impairment has been 
recorded on these securities. Both cash and stock dividends are reported as income. 

Defined Benefit Pension Plan  
 
The Bank has a defined benefit pension plan (the “Plan”) covering substantially all of its employees hired prior to March 31, 2012. The 
benefits are based on years of service and the employee’s average monthly pay received during the five highest consecutive calendar 
years in the last 10 years of employment under the Plan. Management contributes annually the amounts necessary to provide for defined 
benefit payments upon retirement or death as determined by the Plan’s actuary. The Plan was frozen effective March 31, 2012 for all 
employees. No additional benefits are being accrued for active participants after that date and no new participants will be entered into the 
Plan.  

The Bank records annual amounts relating to the Plan based on calculations that incorporate various actuarial and other assumptions 
including discount rates, mortality, assumed rates of return, compensation increases, and turnover rates. The Bank reviews its assumptions 
on an annual basis and makes modifications to the assumptions based on current rates and trends where appropriate to do so. The effect of 
modifications to those assumptions is recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and amortized to net periodic pension 
cost over future periods. The Bank believes that the assumptions utilized in recording its obligations under its plan are reasonable based 
on its experience and market conditions.  

Comprehensive Loss   

U.S. GAAP generally requires that recognized revenue, expenses, gains, and losses be included in income. Although certain changes in 
assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available for sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the 
equity section and changes in the funded status of the pension plan, such items, along with net loss are components of comprehensive 
loss.  

Income Taxes  

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences between the 
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The 
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. 
Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion 
or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.  

The Company recognizes the tax effects from an uncertain tax position in the consolidated financial statements only if the position is 
more likely than not to be sustained on audit, based on the technical merits of the position. The Company recognizes the financial 
statement benefit of a tax position only after determining that the relevant tax authority would more likely than not sustain the position 
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following an audit. For tax positions meeting the more-likely-than-not threshold, the amount recognized in the consolidated financial 
statements is the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized, upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax 
authority. The Company recognizes interest and penalties accrued or released related to uncertain tax positions in current income tax 
expense or benefit.  

Transfers of Financial Assets  

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets 
is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of 
conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Company does 
not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity.  

Advertising  

Advertising costs are accrued and expensed in the period incurred.  

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments  

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank has entered into off-balance-sheet financial instruments consisting of commitments to extend 
credit, commitments under credit card arrangements, commercial letters of credit and standby letters of credit. Such financial instruments 
are recorded in the consolidated financial statements when they are funded or related fees are incurred or received.  

Allowance for Credit Losses on Off-Balance Sheet Credit Exposures 

The Company records an ACL on off-balance sheet credit exposures through a charge to provision for credit losses for off-balance sheet 
credit exposures that are not unconditionally cancellable by the Company. The ACL on off-balance sheete credit exposures is estimated 
by portfolio segment under the CECL model using the same methodologies as portfolio loans, taking into consideration management’s 
assumption of the likelihood that funding will occur, and is included in other liabilities on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.  

Segments 

Segments are components of a Company that have discrete financial information available and are regularly evaluated by a chief 
operating decision maker (“CODM”) to assess performance and decide how resources are allocated. Substantially all of the Company’s 
operations occur through the Bank and involve the delivery of loan and deposit products to customers. Management makes operating 
decisions and assesses performance based on an ongoing review of its banking operation, which constitutes the Company’s only operating 
segment for financial reporting purposes. The Company’s one reportable segment is determined by our President and Chief Executive 
Officer, who is designated the CODM, based upon information provided about the Company’s products and services offered, primarily 
community banking operations. The CODM manages business activities on a consolidated basis and uses consolidated net loss, as 
reported on the consolidated financial statements of operations, to evaluate financial performance, allocate resources, and monitor budget 
versus actuals. The competitive analysis along with the monitoring of budgeted versus actual results are used in assessing performance of 
the segment and in establishing management’s compensation. The measure of segment assets is reported on the consolidated balance 
sheets as total assets at June 30, 2025 and 2024. 

Reclassification 

Certain amounts in the June 30, 2024 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the June 30, 2025 
presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on reported net loss. 
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Subsequent Events  

Management has reviewed the Company’s operations for potential disclosure or financial statement impacts related to events occurring 
after June 30, 2025, but prior to the release of these financial statements. Based on the results of this review, no subsequent event 
disclosure or financial statement impacts to these financial statements are required as of September 11, 2025. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issues Accounting Standards Updates (“ASU”s) to the FASB ASC. This section 
provides a summary description of recent ASUs that had or that management expects may have an impact on the consolidated financial 
statements issued upon adoption.   

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements 

In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-07, “Segment Reporting – Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures (Topic 
280).” This ASU requires disclosure of incremental segment information on an annual basis for all public business entities, including 
entities with one reportable segment. Such incremental disclosures include information about significant segment expenses, how chief 
operating decision makers (CODM) measure a segment’s profit or loss, and qualitative information about how a CODM assesses segment 
performance. The Company adopted the provisions of the ASU effective July 1, 2024. As the Company has only one reportable segment 
(community banking segment), this ASU did not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. 

Recently Issued, But Not Yet Effective Accounting Pronouncements 

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU no. 2023-09, '’Income Taxes (Topic 740)”. ASU No. 2023-09 requires presentation of specific 
categories of reconciling items, as well as reconciling items that meet a quantitative threshold, in the reconciliation between the income 
tax provision and the income tax provision using statutory tax rates. The standard also requires disclosure of income taxes paid 
disaggregated by jurisdiction with deparate disclosure of income taxes paid to individual jurisdictions that meet a quantitative threshold. 
The amendments in this accounting standard are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2025. The Company does not 
expect it to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements. 

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU no. 2024-03, “Income Statement – Reporting Comprehensive Income – Expense 
Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic 220-40).” Under ASU 2024-03, public business entities are required to disclose disaggregated 
information about certain costs and expenses in the notes to their financial statements. The amendments in this accounting standard are 
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2026. The Company does not expect it to have a material impact on its 
consolidated financial statements.  
 

NOTE 2 – Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liabilities in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date (exit price) and establishes a framework for measuring fair value. 

To determine fair value, the Company utilizes market data or assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or 
liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily 
observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservable. The Company is able to classify fair value balances based on the 
observability of those inputs. The guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The 
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) 
and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows: 
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> Level 1 - Fair value is based upon quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets. Active markets 
are those in which transactions for the asset or liability occur in sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information 
on an ongoing basis. Level 1 primarily consists of financial instruments such as listed equities and U.S. Treasury securities.  

> Level 2 - Fair value is based upon quoted prices for similar, but not identical, assets and liabilities in active markets, and other 
inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial 
instrument. This also includes quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other 
than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, or inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by 
observable market data. 

> Level 3 - Fair value is based upon financial models using primarily unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs reflect the 
Company’s own assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed 
based on the best information available in the circumstances. 

A financial instrument’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement. 

Assets 

Available for sale securities  Where quoted prices for securities are available in an active market, those securities are classified within 
Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. If such quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated using pricing models, 
quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, or discounted cash flows. Examples of securities with similar characteristics, which 
would generally be classified within Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy, include certain AAA-rated U.S. government sponsored agency 
securities, municipal obligations, and mortgage-backed securities. A security using financial models based upon primarily unobservable 
inputs, such as commercial paper, would generally be classified within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy. 

Loans  The Company does not record loans at fair value on a recurring basis. However, from time to time, a loan is individually evaluated 
and an ACL may be established. Loans for which it is probable that payment of interest and principal will not be made in accordance with 
the contractual terms of the loan agreement are individually evaluated. Once a loan is individually evaluated, management measures 
impairment. The fair value of individually evaluated loans is estimated using one of several methods, including collateral value, market 
value of similar debt, enterprise value, or liquidation value and discounted cash flows. Those individually evaluated loans not requiring an 
allowance represent loans for which the fair value of the collateral exceeds the recorded investments in such loans and for which carrying 
amount will remain at amortized cost. Individually evaluated loans where an allowance is established based on the fair value of collateral 
or expected cash flows require classification in the fair value hierarchy. When the fair value of the collateral is based on an observable 
market price or a current appraised value, less selling costs, the Company records the individually evaluated loan as a non-recurring Level 
3 valuation.  

Other real estate owned, net  Assets on which the underlying collateral has been repossessed are initially recorded at the fair market value 
of the real estate acquired less estimated costs to sell, establishing a new cost basis. 

Subsequently, other real estate owned is carried at the lower of carrying value or fair value. Fair value is based upon independent market 
prices, appraised values of the collateral or management’s estimation of the value of the collateral. When the fair value of the collateral is 
based on an observable market price or a current appraised value, less selling costs, the Company records the repossessed asset as a non-
recurring Level 3 valuation.  

The following tables set forth, by level within the fair value hierarchy, the Company’s financial assets that were accounted for at fair 
value on a recurring and non-recurring basis as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. According to fair value guidance, financial assets 
and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to their fair value measurement. The 
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Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment, and may affect the 
valuation of fair value assets and liabilities and their placement within the fair value hierarchy levels. 

The following table presents assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis: 
 
             

  Fair Value as of June 30, 2025 
      Level 1      Level 2      Level 3      Total 

Securities classified as available for sale:                      
Obligations of states and political subdivisions  $  —  $  20,475,317  $  —  $  20,475,317 
US government agency obligations    —    3,961,196    —    3,961,196 
Municipal leases    —    527,943    —    527,943 

Total  $  —  $  24,964,456  $  —  $  24,964,456 
 
             

  Fair Value as of June 30, 2024 
      Level 1      Level 2      Level 3      Total 

Securities classified as available for sale:                      
Obligations of states and political subdivisions  $  —  $  21,764,679  $  —  $  21,764,679 
US government agency obligations    —    4,750,572    —    4,750,572 
Municipal leases    —    848,328    —    848,328 

Total  $  —  $  27,363,579  $  —  $  27,363,579 
 
Assets measured at fair value on non-recurring basis: 
  
             

  Fair Value as of June 30, 2025 
      Level 1      Level 2      Level 3      Total 

Other real estate owned, net     —     —     103,270     103,270 
Total  $  —  $  —  $  103,270  $  103,270 
 

Other real estate owned with carrying amounts of $103,270 were determined, as shown in the table above, to have a fair value of 
$103,270 as of June 30, 2025. In addition, capital expenditures of $12,625 were incurred during the year, which increased the carrying 
amount of other real estate owned to $115,895 as of June 30, 2025. 

There were no assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as of June 30, 2024. 

The following present quantitative information about nonrecurring Level 3 fair value measurements: 

          

  As of June 30, 2025 

      Fair Value      Valuation Technique      Unobservable Input(s)      
Range/Weighted 

Average 

Other real estate owned, net  $  103,270  
Market price or 
appraised value 

 
Discount on appraised 
values for selling costs 

 5% - 15% 

 

There were no non-recurring level 3 fair value measurements as of June 30, 2024. 

          

Financial Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

Accounting guidance requires disclosures of the estimated fair value of certain financial instruments and the methods and significant 
assumptions used to estimate their fair values. Certain financial instruments and all non-financial instruments are excluded from the scope 
of the guidance. 
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The estimated fair values of financial instruments are as follows: 
 
             

  June 30, 2025      June 30, 2024 
      Carrying Value      Fair Value      Carrying Value      Fair Value 
FINANCIAL ASSETS                    

Cash and cash equivalents   $  4,713,973  $  4,713,973  $  5,965,656  $  5,965,656 
Interest bearing deposits in banks   $  36,032  $  36,032  $  14,199  $  14,199 
Available for sale securities   $  24,964,456  $  24,964,456  $  27,363,579  $  27,363,579 
Loans, net   $  279,848,598  $  268,865,598  $  289,774,066  $  264,811,952 
Loans held for sale   $  1,782,300  $  1,782,300  $  480,000  $  480,000 
Federal Home Loan Bank stock   $  1,053,100  $  1,053,100  $  1,053,100  $  1,053,100 
Accrued interest receivable   $  1,154,187  $  1,154,187  $  1,160,933  $  1,160,933 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES              
Deposits   $  286,489,962  $  285,878,962  $  300,931,095  $  300,313,095 
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings  $  4,000,000  $  4,000,000  $  —  $  — 
Accrued interest payable   $  520,448  $  520,448  $  1,160,742  $  1,160,742 

 
The methods and assumptions that were used to estimate the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair 
value on a recurring and non-recurring basis have been previously disclosed. The following methods and assumptions were used to 
estimate the fair value of other financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value: 

Cash and cash equivalents – Due to their short term nature, the carrying amount of cash equivalents approximates fair value and is 
categorized in level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. 

Interest bearing deposits in banks – The carrying amount approximates fair value and is categorized in level 2 of the fair value 
hierarchy. 

Available for sale securities – The fair value is estimated using quoted market prices or by using pricing models and is categorized in 
level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. 

Loans – The fair value of variable rate loans that reprice frequently are based on carrying values. The fair value of other loans is 
estimated by discounting future cash flows using current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit 
ratings and is categorized in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. 

Loans held for sale – Fair value is based on commitments on hand from investors or prevailing market prices and is categorized in level 
2 of the fair value hierarchy. 

Federal Home Loan Bank stock – No secondary market exists for FHLB stock. The stock is bought and sold at par by the FHLB and 
management believes the carrying amount approximates fair value and is categorized in level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. 

Accrued interest receivable – Due to their short term nature, the carrying amount approximates fair value and is categorized in level 1 of 
the fair value hierarchy. 

Deposits – Fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, such as demand deposits, savings, and money market accounts, by definition, is 
the amount payable on demand on the reporting date. Fair value of fixed rate time deposits is estimated using discounted cash flows 
applying interest rates currently offered on similar time deposits. Deposits are categorized in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. 

Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings – The carrying amount approximates fair value and is categorized in level 2 of the fair value 
hierarchy. 
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Accrued interest payable – Due to their short term nature, the carrying amount approximates fair value and is categorized in level 1 of 
the fair value hierarchy. 

The estimated fair value of fee income on letters of credit at June 30, 2025 and 2024 is insignificant. Loan commitments on which the 
committed interest rate is less than the current market rate are also insignificant at June 30, 2025 and 2024. 

NOTE 3 – Cash and Due From Banks 

The Federal Reserve Board reduced reserve requirements to U.S. banks to 0%. Accordingly, the Bank had no required reserves with the 
Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago at June 30, 2025 and 2024. 
 
 
NOTE 4 – Available for Sale Securities 

Amortized costs and fair values of available for sale securities are summarized as follows: 
 
             

  June 30, 2025 
     Gross  Gross    
  Amortized  Unrealized  Unrealized    
      Cost      Gains      Losses      Fair Value 

Obligations of states and political subdivisions  $  23,664,071  $  —  $  3,188,754  $  20,475,317 
U.S. government agency obligations    4,142,742    —    181,546    3,961,196 
Municipal leases    642,398    —    114,455    527,943 
  $  28,449,211  $  —  $  3,484,755  $  24,964,456 
 
             

  June 30, 2024 
     Gross  Gross    
  Amortized  Unrealized  Unrealized    
      Cost      Gains      Losses      Fair Value 

Obligations of states and political subdivisions  $  25,625,335  $  —  $  3,860,656  $  21,764,679 
U.S. government agency obligations    5,142,678    —    392,106    4,750,572 
Municipal leases    989,745    —    141,417    848,328 
  $  31,757,758  $  —  $  4,394,179  $  27,363,579 
 
The following tables present the portion of the Company’s available for sale securities portfolio which has gross unrealized losses, 
reflecting the length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position: 
 
                   

  June 30, 2025 
  Continuous Unrealized  Continuous Unrealized       
  Losses Existing for Less  Losses Existing for 12 Months       
  Than 12 Months  or Greater  Total 
      Unrealized      Unrealized      Unrealized 
      Fair Value      Losses      Fair Value      Losses      Fair Value      Losses 
Obligations of states and political subdivisions  $  1,529,026  $  115,974  $  18,946,291  $  3,072,780  $  20,475,317  $  3,188,754 
U.S. government agency obligations    —    —    3,961,196    181,546    3,961,196    181,546 
Municipal leases    —    —    527,943    114,455    527,943    114,455 
  $  1,529,026  $  115,974  $  23,435,430  $  3,368,781  $  24,964,456  $  3,484,755 
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      June 30, 2024 
  Continuous Unrealized  Continuous Unrealized       
  Losses Existing for Less  Losses Existing for 12 Months       
  Than 12 Months  or Greater  Total 
      Unrealized      Unrealized      Unrealized 
      Fair Value      Losses      Fair Value      Losses      Fair Value      Losses 
Obligations of states and political subdivisions  $  221,944  $  42,417  $  21,542,735  $  3,818,239  $  21,764,679  $  3,860,656 
U.S. government agency obligations    —    —    4,750,572    392,106    4,750,572    392,106 
Municipal leases    —    —    848,328    141,417    848,328    141,417 
  $  221,944  $  42,417  $  27,141,635  $  4,351,762  $  27,363,579  $  4,394,179 

 
The Company held $23.4 million, comprised of 97 securities, and $27.1 million, comprised of 112 securities, in obligations of state and 
political subdivisions, agencies, and municipal leases at June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, that have an unrealized loss existing for 
12 months or greater. Management believes the temporary impairment in fair value was caused by market fluctuations in interest rates. 
Although these securities are classified as available for sale, management does not have the intent to sell the security and it is more likely 
than not it will be able to hold the security through a recovery period or until maturity and therefore the Company has determined that no 
allowance for credit losses was required on available for sale securities as of June 30, 2025 and 2024. 

The amortized cost and fair value of available for sale securities as of June 30, 2025 are shown below by contractual maturity. 
 
       

  Amortized    
      Cost      Fair Value 

Due in one year or less  $  2,509,831  $  2,466,669 
Due after one year through 5 years     6,413,441     6,101,929 
Due after 5 years through 10 years     12,847,772     10,862,202 
Due after 10 years     6,678,167     5,533,656 

Total  $  28,449,211  $  24,964,456 
 
During the years ended June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024, the Company did not sell any available for sale securities. The Company did not 
have any available for sale securities pledged at June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024 as collateral on public deposits or for other purposes as 
required or permitted by law. 

NOTE 5 – Loans 

Major classifications of loans are as follows:  
 
       

      June 30, 2025      June 30, 2024 

1-4 family residential  $  137,550,311  $  142,867,311 
Multifamily     105,289,370     114,825,647 
1-4 family residential construction     5,437,913     1,234,411 
Other construction, development & land     6,408,222     3,529,518 
Nonfarm nonresidential    23,921,871    27,616,634 
Commercial & industrial    3,667,572    2,234,526 
Consumer loans     182,783     166,385 
     
Total loans     282,458,042     292,474,432 
Less:           
Allowance for credit losses     (2,609,444)    (2,700,366)

     
Loans, net  $  279,848,598  $  289,774,066 
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Deferred loan fees, net of costs are included within the unpaid principal balances above. 

The Company engages in a variety of lending activities, including commercial, nonresidential real estate, residential real estate and 
consumer transactions. The Company focuses its lending activities on individuals, professionals and small to medium sized businesses. 
Risks associated with lending activities include economic conditions and changes in interest rates, which can adversely impact both the 
ability of borrowers to repay their loans and the value of the associated collateral. 

Commercial and industrial loans, nonfarm nonresidential loans, construction and development loans and residential real estate loans with 
a business purpose are generally perceived as having more risk of default than residential real estate loans with a personal purpose and 
consumer loans. These types of loans involve larger loan balances to a single borrower or groups of related borrowers and are more 
susceptible to a risk of loss during a downturn in the business cycle. Nonfarm nonresidential real estate and residential real estate loans 
secured for a business purpose are originated primarily within the metropolitan Milwaukee market area at conservative loan-to-value 
ratios and often backed by the individual guarantees of the borrowers or owners. Repayment of this kind of loan is dependent upon either 
the ongoing cash flow of the borrowing entity or the resale of or lease of the subject property. Nonfarm nonresidential real estate loans 
may be affected to a greater extent than residential loans by adverse conditions in real estate markets or the economy because nonfarm 
nonresidential real estate borrowers’ ability to repay their loans depends on successful development of their properties, as well as the 
factors affecting residential real estate borrowers. Commercial and industrial loans may involve greater risk because the availability of 
funds to repay these loans depends on the successful operation of the borrower’s business. The assets financed are used within the 
business for its ongoing operation. Repayment of these kinds of loans generally comes from the cash flow of the business or the ongoing 
conversions of assets, such as accounts receivable and inventory, to cash. Typical collateral for commercial and industrial loans includes 
the borrower’s accounts receivable, inventory and machinery and equipment. 

The Company originates fixed-rate and adjustable-rate real estate residential mortgage loans for personal purposes that are secured by first 
liens on the underlying 1-4 family residential properties. Credit risk exposure in this area of lending is minimized by the evaluation of the 
credit worthiness of the borrower, including debt-to-income ratios, credit scores and adherence to underwriting policies that emphasize 
conservative loan-to-value ratios of generally no more than 80%. 1-4 family residential mortgage loans granted in excess of the 80% loan-
to-value ratio criterion are generally insured by private mortgage insurance. 

The 1-4 family residential real estate portfolio also includes variable-rate home equity lines of credit, and to a lesser extent, fixed-rate 
home equity loans. Risks associated with loans secured by residential properties are generally lower than nonfarm nonresidential loans 
and include general economic risks, such as the strength of the job market, employment stability and the strength of the housing market. 
Since most loans are secured by a primary or secondary residence, the borrower’s continued employment is the greatest risk to repayment. 

The Company offers a variety of loans to individuals for personal and household purposes. Consumer loans are generally considered to 
have greater risk than first or second mortgages on 1-4 family residential real estate because they may be unsecured, or, if they are 
secured, the value of the collateral may be difficult to assess and is more likely to decrease in value than real estate. Credit risk in this 
portfolio is controlled by conservative underwriting standards that consider debt-to-income levels and the creditworthiness of the 
borrower and, if secured, collateral values. 

Policies have been established that set standards for the maximum nonfarm nonresidential and multifamily real estate loan amount by type 
of property, loan terms, pricing structures, loan-to-value limits by property type, as well as policies and procedures for granting 
exceptions to established underwriting standards. 

The Company’s 1-4 family residential real estate lending policies require all loans to have viable repayment sources. Residential real 
estate loans are evaluated for the adequacy of these repayment sources at the time of approval using such factors as credit scores, debt-to-
income ratios and collateral values. Home equity loans and lines of credit are generally governed by the same lending policies. 

Origination activities for construction and development real estate loans are similar to those described above for nonfarm nonresidential 
real estate, multifamily real estate and 1-4 family residential real estate lending. 

The Company has purchased loan participations in which they are not the primary lender. At June 30, 2025 and 2024, the aggregate 
amount of purchased participations was $21.6 million and $23.4 million, respectively. The Company has also participated out portions of 
loans that exceeded its loans-to-one borrower legal lending limit and for risk diversification. At June 30, 2025 and 2024 the Company had 
participated out portions of loans with aggregate balances of $48.6 million and $51.4 million, respectively. 
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Information about how loans were individually evaluated and the related allowance for credit losses follows: 
 
                         

  June 30, 2025 
                  1-4 Family      Other Construction                     
  1-4 Family     Residential  Development  Nonfarm  Commercial & Consumer   
  Residential  Multifamily  Construction & Land  Nonresidential Industrial  Loans  Total 
Loans:                                         

Individually evaluated  $  405,847  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  405,847 
Collectively evaluated     137,144,464     105,289,370     5,437,913     6,408,222     23,921,871     3,667,572     182,783     282,052,195 

Total loans  $ 137,550,311  $ 105,289,370  $  5,437,913  $  6,408,222  $  23,921,871  $  3,667,572  $  182,783  $  282,458,042 
                         
Related allowance for credit losses:                                         

Individually evaluated  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  — 
Collectively evaluated     1,872,759     460,274     44,470     50,677     150,315     30,136     813     2,609,444 

Total allowance for credit losses  $  1,872,759  $  460,274  $  44,470  $  50,677  $  150,315  $  30,136  $  813  $  2,609,444 
                         
Net Loans:                                         

Individually evaluated  $  405,847  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  405,847 
Collectively evaluated     135,271,705     104,829,096     5,393,443     6,357,545     23,771,556     3,637,436     181,970     279,442,751 

Total net loans  $ 135,677,552  $ 104,829,096  $  5,393,443  $  6,357,545  $  23,771,556  $  3,637,436  $  181,970  $  279,848,598 

 
  
                         

  June 30, 2024 
                  1-4 Family      Other Construction                     
  1-4 Family     Residential  Development  Nonfarm  Commercial & Consumer   
  Residential  Multifamily  Construction & Land  Nonresidential Industrial  Loans  Total 
Loans:                                         

Individually evaluated  $  171,897  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  171,897 
Collectively evaluated     142,695,414     114,825,647     1,234,411     3,529,518     27,616,634     2,234,526     166,385     292,302,535 

Total loans  $ 142,867,311  $ 114,825,647  $  1,234,411  $  3,529,518  $  27,616,634  $  2,234,526  $  166,385  $  292,474,432 
                         
Related allowance for credit losses:                                         

Individually evaluated  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  — 
Collectively evaluated     1,678,678     754,274     13,470     21,677     193,315     14,136     24,816     2,700,366 

Total allowance for credit losses  $  1,678,678  $  754,274  $  13,470  $  21,677  $  193,315  $  14,136  $  24,816  $  2,700,366 
                         
Net Loans:                                       

Individually evaluated  $  171,897  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  171,897 
Collectively evaluated     141,016,736     114,071,373     1,220,941     3,507,841     27,423,319     2,220,390     141,569     289,602,169 

Total net loans  $ 141,188,633  $ 114,071,373  $  1,220,941  $  3,507,841  $  27,423,319  $  2,220,390  $  141,569  $  289,774,066 

 
 
All individually evaluated collateral dependent loans as of June 30, 2025 and 2024 are secured by 1-4 family residential real estate.  
  
The following are the Company’s risk rating definitions: 
 
Pass:  Loans in this category are to persons or entities that span from having financial characteristics of unquestioned strength to entities 
that have potential risks that if left uncorrected could at some point result in deterioration of the Bank’s credit position. General 
characteristics that are monitored include borrower net worth, liquidity and entity profitability. 

Special Mention:  Loans in this category contain some weakness or potential weakness that if left uncorrected may result in the 
deterioration of the repayment capacity, though the collectability of the contractual loan payments is still probable. 

Substandard:  Loans in this category exhibit the same characteristics as “Special Mention” rated credits and are inadequately protected by 
the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor and/or of the collateral pledged as security for the asset such that collectability of 
the contractual loan payments is no longer probable.  

Doubtful:   Loans in this category have been placed in non-accrual and the Bank has taken legal action to preserve its position. 
Collectability of the contractual loan payments is unlikely.  
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Information regarding the loan portfolio by risk classification and origination year for the year ended June 30, 2025 follows: 

 
                         

  Term Loans Amortized Cost Basis By Origination Year       
  2025  2024  2023  2022  2021  Prior  Revolving  Total 
1-4 family residential                                         
Pass  $  8,253,607  $  8,984,104  $  31,892,067  $  42,812,701  $  9,588,504  $  30,025,356  $  5,588,125  $  137,144,464 
Substandard     —     —     —     227,905     —     177,942     —     405,847 
Totals  $  8,253,607  $  8,984,104  $  31,892,067  $  43,040,606  $  9,588,504  $  30,203,298  $  5,588,125  $  137,550,311 
Gross chargeoffs  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  58,799  $  —  $  —  $  58,799 
                         
Multifamily                                         
Pass  $  8,490,121  $  1,151,896  $  11,053,714  $  37,280,806  $  22,917,866  $  24,394,967  $  —  $  105,289,370 
Totals  $  8,490,121  $  1,151,896  $  11,053,714  $  37,280,806  $  22,917,866  $  24,394,967  $  —  $  105,289,370 
Gross chargeoffs  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  — 

                         
1-4 family residential construction                                         
Pass  $  3,737,587  $  1,700,326  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  5,437,913 
Totals  $  3,737,587  $  1,700,326  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  5,437,913 
Gross chargeoffs  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  — 

                         
Other construction, development & land                                         
Pass  $  301,152  $  146,800  $  110,806  $  5,146,566  $  331,299  $  371,599  $  —  $  6,408,222 
Totals  $  301,152  $  146,800  $  110,806  $  5,146,566  $  331,299  $  371,599  $  —  $  6,408,222 
Gross chargeoffs  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  — 

                         
Nonfarm nonresidential                                         
Pass  $  2,930,954  $  787,732  $  5,660,767  $  7,844,137  $  835,792  $  5,077,356  $  785,133  $  23,921,871 
Totals  $  2,930,954  $  787,732  $  5,660,767  $  7,844,137  $  835,792  $  5,077,356  $  785,133  $  23,921,871 
Gross chargeoffs  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  — 

                         
Commercial & industrial                                         
Pass  $  1,075,321  $  350,613  $  86,213  $  115,570  $  17,389  $  2,022,466  $  —  $  3,667,572 
Totals  $  1,075,321  $  350,613  $  86,213  $  115,570  $  17,389  $  2,022,466  $  —  $  3,667,572 
Gross chargeoffs  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  — 

                         
Consumer                                         
Pass  $  111,806  $  13,882  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  $  57,095  $  182,783 
Totals  $  111,806  $  13,882  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  57,095  $  182,783 
Gross chargeoffs  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  105  $  105 

                         
Total Loans                                         
Pass  $  24,900,548  $  13,135,353  $  48,803,567  $  93,199,780  $  33,690,850  $  61,891,744  $  6,430,353  $  282,052,195 
Substandard     —     —     —     227,905     —     177,942     —     405,847 
Totals  $  24,900,548  $  13,135,353  $  48,803,567  $  93,427,685  $  33,690,850  $  62,069,686  $  6,430,353  $  282,458,042 
Gross chargeoffs  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  58,799  $  —  $  105  $  58,904 
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Information regarding the loan portfolio by risk classification and origination year for the year ended June 30, 2024 follows:  
 
                         

  Term Loans Amortized Cost Basis By Origination Year       
  2024  2023  2022  2021  2020  Prior  Revolving  Total 
1-4 family residential                                         
Pass  $  10,093,841  $  34,387,117  $  46,149,408  $  10,684,209  $  6,603,816  $  29,528,726  $  5,248,297  $  142,695,414 
Substandard     —     —     —     —     —     171,897     —     171,897 
Totals  $  10,093,841  $  34,387,117  $  46,149,408  $  10,684,209  $  6,603,816  $  29,700,623  $  5,248,297  $  142,867,311 
Gross chargeoffs  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  — 
                         
Multifamily                                         
Pass  $  1,266,123  $  12,670,346  $  38,206,197  $  25,407,642  $  9,636,425  $  27,638,914  $  —  $  114,825,647 
Totals  $  1,266,123  $  12,670,346  $  38,206,197  $  25,407,642  $  9,636,425  $  27,638,914  $  —  $  114,825,647 
Gross chargeoffs  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  — 

                         
1-4 family residential construction                                         
Pass  $  1,234,411  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  1,234,411 
Totals  $  1,234,411  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  1,234,411 
Gross chargeoffs  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  — 

                         
Other construction, development & land                                         
Pass  $  285,287  $  366,938  $  1,992,144  $  470,251  $  96,160  $  318,738  $  —  $  3,529,518 
Totals  $  285,287  $  366,938  $  1,992,144  $  470,251  $  96,160  $  318,738  $  —  $  3,529,518 
Gross chargeoffs  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  — 

                         
Nonfarm nonresidential                                         
Pass  $  806,162  $  10,729,696  $  8,182,763  $  905,321  $  1,538  $  6,880,104  $  111,050  $  27,616,634 
Totals  $  806,162  $  10,729,696  $  8,182,763  $  905,321  $  1,538  $  6,880,104  $  111,050  $  27,616,634 
Gross chargeoffs  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  — 

                         
Commercial & industrial                                         
Pass  $  438,244  $  117,261  $  224,275  $  66,090  $  41,426  $  1,347,230  $  —  $  2,234,526 
Totals  $  438,244  $  117,261  $  224,275  $  66,090  $  41,426  $  1,347,230  $  —  $  2,234,526 
Gross chargeoffs  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  — 

                         
Consumer                                         
Pass  $  60,620  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  52,801  $  52,963  $  166,385 
Totals  $  60,620  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  52,801  $  52,963  $  166,385 
Gross chargeoffs  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  487  $  487 

                         
Total Loans                                         
Pass  $  14,184,688  $  58,271,358  $  94,754,787  $  37,533,513  $  16,379,365  $  65,766,513  $  5,412,310  $  292,302,535 
Substandard     —     —     —     —     —     171,897     —     171,897 
Totals  $  14,184,688  $  58,271,358  $  94,754,787  $  37,533,513  $  16,379,365  $  65,938,410  $  5,412,310  $  292,474,432 
Gross chargeoffs  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  487  $  487 
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The following is a summary of past due loans as of June 30, 2025 and 2024: 
 
                

  June 30, 2025 
  30-59 days  60-89 days  90 days & over  Current   
   accruing  accruing  or nonaccrual  accruing  Total 

1-4 family residential  $  632,117  $  571,777  $  405,847  $  135,940,570  $  137,550,311 

Multifamily    —    —    —    105,289,370    105,289,370 
1-4 family residential construction    —    —    —    5,437,913    5,437,913 
Other construction, development & land    54,786    —    —    6,353,436    6,408,222 
Nonfarm nonresidential    55,113    —    —    23,866,758    23,921,871 

Commercial & industrial    —    —    —    3,667,572    3,667,572 
Consumer loans    —     —     —     182,783     182,783 

Total  $  742,016  $  571,777  $  405,847  $  280,738,402  $  282,458,042 

 
                

  June 30, 2024 
  30-59 days  60-89 days  90 days & over  Current   
  accruing  accruing  or nonaccrual  accruing  Total 

1-4 family residential  $  1,477,239  $  266,127  $  171,897  $  140,952,048  $  142,867,311 
Multifamily    —    —    —    114,825,647    114,825,647 
1-4 family residential construction    —    —    —    1,234,411    1,234,411 
Other construction, development & land    58,150    —    —    3,471,368    3,529,518 
Nonfarm nonresidential    —    —    —    27,616,634    27,616,634 
Commercial & industrial    —    —    —    2,234,526    2,234,526 
Consumer loans    —     —     —     166,385     166,385 

Total  $  1,535,389  $  266,127  $  171,897  $  290,501,019  $  292,474,432 

 
As of June 30, 2025 and 2024 there were no loans 90 days or over that were not on nonaccrual. 

Certain directors and executive officers of the Company, and their related interests, had loans outstanding in the aggregate amounts of 
$2,550,077 and $2,533,810 at June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2025, one new loan was made 
totaling $250,000 and one new line of credit was made totaling $100,000 with a drawn balance of $84,000. One loan and one line of 
credit were paid off totaling $202,468 and $53,000, respectively, and repayments totaled $62,265. During the year ended June 30, 2024, 
two new loans were made totaling $558,176. One loan was paid off totaling $365,729 and repayments totaled $60,403. Except for loans 
with a discounted interest rate made to executive officers pursuant to a program that is available to all Company employees and that 
complies with applicable banking regulations, these loans were made on substantially the same terms, including collateral, as those 
prevailing at the same time for comparable transactions with unrelated persons and did not involve more than normal risks of 
collectability or present other unfavorable features. 

During the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, there were no loan modifications granted to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty. 
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NOTE 6 – Allowance for Credit Losses 

The following table presents the activity in the allowance for credit losses by portfolio segment for the year ended June 30, 2025: 
                         

  June 30, 2025 

               1-4 Family      Other Constr            Commercial             
  1-4 Family     Residential  Development  Nonfarm Non- &  Consumer   
      Residential  Multifamily  Construction  & Land  residential  Industrial  Loans  Total 
Allowance for credit losses:                        
Balance at 6/30/24  $  1,678,678  $  754,274  $  13,470  $  21,677  $  193,315  $  14,136  $  24,816  $  2,700,366 
Loans charged off    (58,799)   —    —    —    —    —    (105)   (58,904)
Recoveries collected     880     —     —     —     —     —     2,102     2,982 
Provision for (recapture of) 
credit losses     252,000     (294,000)    31,000     29,000     (43,000)    16,000     (26,000)    (35,000)
Balance at 6/30/25  $  1,872,759  $  460,274  $  44,470  $  50,677  $  150,315  $  30,136  $  813  $  2,609,444 

 
The following table presents the activity in the allowance for credit losses by portfolio segment for the year ended June 30, 2024: 
 
                            

  June 30, 2024 

               1-4 Family     Other Constr          Commercial          Not       
  1-4 Family     Residential  Development  Nonfarm Non- &  Consumer  Specifically   
      Residential  Multifamily  Construction & Land  residential  Industrial  Loans  Allocated  Total 

Allowance for credit losses:                           
Balance at 6/30/23  $  639,652  $  630,176  $  19,156  $  13,588  $  173,472  $  12,184  $  3,841  $  51,764  $  1,543,833 
Impact of adopting ASC 326    1,427,181    (106,176)   (14,156)    46,412    (11,472)   2,816    34,159    (51,764)   1,327,000 
Loans charged off    —    —    —    —    —    —    (487)   —    (487)
Recoveries collected     5,020     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     5,020 
Provision for (recapture of) 
credit losses     (393,175)    230,274     8,470     (38,323)     31,315     (864)    (12,697)    —     (175,000)
Balance at 6/30/24  $  1,678,678  $  754,274  $  13,470  $  21,677  $  193,315  $  14,136  $  24,816  $  —  $  2,700,366 

 
 
At June 30, 2025 and 2024, the Company maintained a reserve for unfunded loan commitments totaling $58,000 and $23,000, 
respectively, which is included in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.   
 
NOTE 7 – Loan Servicing 

The unpaid principal balance of loans serviced for others, which is not included in the consolidated financial statements, was $26,387,722 
and $28,088,402 at June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The Company maintained no custodial balances at June 30, 2025 and June 30, 
2024 in connection with the foregoing loan servicing. 

NOTE 8 – Other Real Estate Owned, Net 

Other real estate owned properties are summarized as follows: 
 
       

      June 30, 2025      June 30, 2024 
Beginning balance   $  —   $  — 
Capital expenditures      12,625      — 
Transfer from loans      103,270      — 
Other real estate owned, net   $  115,895   $  — 
 
There was no recorded investment in 1-4 family owner occupied properties that were in process of foreclosure at June 30, 2025 and June 
30, 2024. 
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NOTE 9 – Leases 

The Company enters into leases for certain retail branches and office space. Operating leases and lease liabilities are listed on the 
consolidated balance sheets. The Company does not have any finance leases.  

Right-of-use (ROU) assets represent the Company’s right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent the 
Company’s obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. Operating lease ROU assets and liabilities are recognized as of July 
1, 2022, or the date of any subsequent lease extension or commencement, based on the present value of lease payments over the lease 
term. The Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at adoption date, or subsequent lease extension or commencement date in 
determining the present value of lease payments when the rate implicit in a lease is not known. The Company’s incremental borrowing 
rate is based on the Federal Home Loan Bank borrowing rate, adjusted for the lease term.  

The Company’s leases are generally for periods of up to ten years with extension options discussed as the termination date approaches. 
The exercise of lease renewal options is not included in the present value of lease obligations unless it is reasonably certain that the option 
will be exercised. The Company has lease agreements which contain both lease and non-lease components such as common area 
maintenance charges, real estate taxes, and insurance. Non-lease components are not included in the measurement of the lease liability 
and are recognized in expense when incurred. The Company has elected not to recognized short-term leases, with original lease terms of 
twelve months or less, on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.  

Supplemental balance sheet information related to leases is presented in the table below as of June 30, 2025: 

        

  June 30, 2025      June 30, 2024      
Weighted average remaining lease term (years)        

Operating leases    4.34     5.34   
Weighted average discount rate        

Operating leases    1.79 %   1.79 % 
 
The table below presents the components of lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2025: 

       

  June 30, 2025      June 30, 2024 
Lease cost:        

Operating lease cost  $  101,208   $  101,208 
Total lease cost  $  101,208  $  101,208 
 
Contractual lease payment obligations, including all unexecuted options, for each of the next five years and thereafter, in addition to a 
reconciliation to the Company’s lease liability are as follows as of June 30, 2025: 

    

  June 30, 2025 
Maturity of lease liabilities    
2026  $  102,349 
2027    103,372 
2028    104,406 
2029    105,450 
2030    35,266 
2031 and after    — 
Total lease payments    450,843 

Less: Interest    16,863 
Present value of lease payments  $  433,980 
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NOTE 10 – Premises and Equipment, net 

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation are summarized as follows: 
 
       

      June 30, 2025      June 30, 2024 
Land   $  2,306,572   $  2,306,572 
Office buildings and improvements      11,005,613      10,973,158 
Leasehold improvements      470,951      470,951 
Furniture and fixtures      6,409,372      6,321,903 
     20,192,508     20,072,584 
Less: Accumulated depreciation      (13,346,420)     (12,867,635)

Premises and equipment, net   $  6,846,088   $  7,204,949 
 
Depreciation expense amounted to $495,884 and $487,096 for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. 
 

NOTE 11 – Accrued Interest Receivable and Other Assets 

A summary of accrued interest receivable and other assets is as follows: 
 
       

      June 30, 2025      June 30, 2024 
Accrued interest receivable   $  1,154,187   $  1,160,933 
Prepaid expenses and other assets      756,697      696,242 

Totals   $  1,910,884   $  1,857,175 
 

 
NOTE 12 – Deposits 

The aggregate amount of certificates of deposit, each with a minimum denomination of $250,000 (the maximum amount for federal 
deposit insurance), was approximately $29,793,757 at June 30, 2025 and $27,176,798 at June 30, 2024. 

At June 30, 2025, the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit are as follows: 
 
    

2026      $  136,794,255 
2027      909,950 
2028      486,115 
2029      305,589 
2030      20,750 
Thereafter      32,251 
  $  138,548,910 
 
The aggregate amount of overdrafts reclassified into loans was $108,324 at June 30, 2025 and $12,060 at June 30, 2024. 

Deposits from directors and executive officers of the Company, and their related interests, totaled $754,629 and $942,453 at June 30, 
2025 and June 30, 2024, respectively. 
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NOTE 13– Borrowings 

Borrowings consist of the following: 

       

      June 30, 2025      June 30, 2024 

FHLB fixed rate advance  $  4,000,000  $  — 
  $  4,000,000  $  — 
 

The Bank has a master contract agreement with the FHLB, which provides for borrowing up to the maximum $111,085,800 at June 30, 
2025. The FHLB provides both fixed and floating rate advances. Fixed rate advances are priced in reference to market rates of interest at 
the time of the advance, namely the rates that FHLB pays to borrowers at various maturities. Variable rate advances are adjusted at the 
end of each business day based on the actual Federal Funds rate earned by the FHLB that day. The Bank has an open line of credit with 
the FHLB with a variable interest rate. The open line of credit matures daily, automatically renewing. The Bank had $0 outstanding on the 
open line of credit at June 30, 2025 and 2024. Additionally, the Bank had $4,000,000 outstanding in term advances at June 30, 2025 and 
$0 outstanding at June 30, 2024. FHLB 30-day advances are pre-payable with a two-day notice by the FHLB. Advances are collateralized 
by a security agreement pledging a portion of the Bank’s 1-4 family and multifamily real estate mortgages with a carrying value of 
$188,879,611 and $200,325,679 at June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. 

The Bank has an agreement with U.S. Bank, which provides for borrowing up to the maximum of $5,000,000 at a rate of 5.0%, at June 
30, 2025 and  6.0% at June 30, 2024. There were no amounts outstanding as of June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024. U.S. Bank provides 
overnight fixed rate advances which are not collateralized as of June 30, 2025 and 2024. 

NOTE 14 – Income Taxes 

The provision for income taxes included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements consists of the following components: 
 
       

      June 30, 2025      June 30, 2024 
Current tax expense:           

Federal  $  —  $  — 
State     25     25 

     25     25 
Deferred tax expense (benefit):           

Federal     (241,880)    (221,591)
Federal valuation allowance    241,880    221,591 
State    (591,673)   (508,680)
State valuation allowance     591,673     508,680 

     —     — 
     

Total income tax expense  $  25  $  25 
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      June 30, 2025      June 30, 2024 
Deferred tax assets         

Loss carryforwards  $  6,423,788  $  5,933,082 
State loss and contribution     3,488,904     2,984,469 
Unrealized loss on available for sale securities     949,363     1,197,087 
Allowance for credit losses     710,839     735,607 
Allowance for unfunded commitments    15,800    6,265 
Pension     —     — 
Pension - FAS 158    178,541    — 
Lease Liability    118,220    143,502 
Other assets     3,711     4,001 
Total deferred tax assets     11,889,166     11,004,013 

Deferred tax liabilities           
Pension     (1,051,023)    (771,900)
Deferred loan fees     (133,430)    (169,333)
Depreciation     (163,269)    (162,354)
ROU Asset    (114,876)   (140,123)
Other liabilities     (172,930)    (77,476)
Total deferred tax liabilities     (1,635,528)    (1,321,186)

Valuation allowance     (10,253,638)    (9,682,827)
Net deferred tax asset  $  —  $  — 
 
 
            

  June 30, 2025  June 30, 2024  
    Percent of    Percent of   
    Pretax    Pretax   
      Amount       Income        Amount        Income    
Reconciliation of statutory to effective rates                      

Federal income taxes at statutory rate  $  (275,740)  21.00 %   $  (417,425)   21.00 % 
Adjustments for            

True up of deferreds     (126,742)  9.65 %      69,331    (3.49)% 
State income taxes, net of valuation allowance     (438,833)  33.42 %      (392,402)   19.74 % 
Federal valuation allowance     833,553   (63.48)%      730,271    (36.74)% 

Other - Net     7,787   (0.59)%      10,250    (0.52)% 
                     
Effective income taxes - operations  $  25    (0.00)%   $  25    (0.01)% 
 
On July 5, 2023, the Wisconsin 2023-2025 budget was signed into law. Under the new law, which is effective for tax years beginning 
after December 31, 2022, banks are allowed to exempt from state taxation loan income from commercial and agricultural loans of $5 
million or less where the borrower resides, or is located in, Wisconsin. This resulted in reduced state income taxes for the year ended June 
30, 2025, and is expected to provide reductions in future years.  

Deferred tax assets primarily relate to the difference in the ACL (and other real estate owned) for book and tax purposes, unrealized losses 
on available for sale securities and net operating losses. The Company has loss carryforwards of approximately $30.6 million and $28.3 
million as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The Company has state loss carryforwards of approximately $55.9 million and $47.8 
million as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The federal losses begin to expire as of September 30, 2030 and the state losses begin 
to expire as of September 30, 2025. The Company has $5.8 million of Federal net operating losses for which there are no expirations and 
are allowed to offset taxable income by 80% in a given year. Deferred tax liabilities primarily relate to the difference in loan fees, 
depreciation on premises and equipment, FHLB stock basis, and prepaid pension costs. 
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Under U.S. GAAP, a valuation allowance is required to be recognized if it is “more likely than not” that a deferred tax asset will not be 
realized. The determination of the realizability of the deferred tax assets is highly subjective and dependent on judgment concerning 
management’s evaluation of both positive and negative evidence, the forecasts of future income, applicable tax planning strategies, and 
assessments of the current and future economic and business conditions. Management considered both positive and negative evidence 
regarding the ultimate realizability of the Company’s deferred tax assets. Positive evidence includes the existence of taxes paid in 
available carryback years as well as the probability that taxable income will be generated in future periods while negative evidence 
includes losses in prior years as well as general business and economic trends. At June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024, management 
determined that a valuation allowance relating to the Company’s deferred tax asset was necessary. This determination was based largely 
on the negative evidence represented by a drop in loan demand resulting in a decrease in sold loan fee income and overall net income. In 
addition, general uncertainty surrounding future economic and business conditions have increased the potential volatility and uncertainty 
of our projected earnings. Therefore, a valuation allowance of $10.3 million and $9.7 million was recorded as of June 30, 2025 and 2024. 

The Company’s policy is to recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as components of interest expense and 
miscellaneous expense, respectively. The Company recognized no interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in its 
Consolidated Statement of Operations during the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024. The Company had no accrual for the payment of 
interest and penalties related to income tax issues as of June 30, 2025 and 2024. 

The Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal income tax examinations by the Internal Revenue Service for years before 
September 30, 2022. The Company is no longer subject to Wisconsin income tax examinations by the Wisconsin Department of Revenue 
for the years before September 30, 2021. The Bank is not currently under examination by any taxing jurisdiction. 

Under the Internal Revenue Code and Wisconsin Statutes, the Company is permitted to deduct, for tax years beginning before 1996, an 
annual addition to a reserve for bad debts. This amount differs from the provision for loan losses recorded for financial accounting 
purposes. Under prior law, bad debt deductions for income tax purposes were included in taxable income of later years only if the bad 
debt reserves were used for purposes other than to absorb bad debt losses. Because the Bank did not intend to use the reserve for purposes 
other than to absorb losses, no deferred income taxes were provided. Retained earnings at June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, includes 
approximately $7.8 million for which no deferred Federal or state income taxes were provided. 

NOTE 15 – Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

The following table sets forth the Plan’s funded status and amounts recognized in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets: 
 
       

      June 30, 2025      June 30, 2024 
Change in projected benefit obligation            

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year  $  7,804,212  $  8,525,062 
Interest cost     417,368     412,084 
Benefits paid     (351,211)     (344,612)
Actuarial loss (gain)     194,115     (258,598)
Settlement     —     (529,724)
Projected benefit obligation at end of year     8,064,484     7,804,212 

      
Change in plan assets            

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year     10,637,528     10,256,865 
Actual return on assets     980,713     1,297,449 
Benefits paid     (351,211)     (916,786)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year     11,267,030     10,637,528 

      
Funded status at end of year  $  3,202,546  $  2,833,316 
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Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss consist of: 
 
       

      June 30, 2025      June 30, 2024 
Accumulated pension actuarial gain, net of income tax benefit of $1,522,485 and $1,522,485, 
respectively  $  (867,073) $  (811,941)
 
The accumulated benefit obligation for the Plan was $8,064,484 and $7,804,212 at June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. Slight increases 
in discount rates during the year from 5.48% as of June 30, 2024 to 5.51% as of June 30, 2025 resulted in a small increase in the year-end 
asset.  

The components of net periodic pension income included in compensation and benefits on the statements of operations are as follows: 
 
       

      June 30, 2025      June 30, 2024 
Interest cost   $  417,368   $  412,084 
Expected return on plan assets      (731,466)     (701,154)
Amortization of net actuarial loss      —      52,376 
Settlement    —    145,130 
     

Net periodic pension income   $  (314,098)  $  (91,564)
 
For the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, actuarial assumptions include an assumed discount rate on benefit obligations of 5.51% and 
5.48% respectively, and an expected long-term rate of return of 7.0% for June 30, 2025 and 2024. The expected long-term rate of return 
for the Plan’s total assets is based on the expected returns of each of the below asset categories, weighted based on the current target 
allocation for each class. The trustees evaluate whether adjustments are needed based on historical returns to more accurately reflect 
expectations of future returns. An annual salary increase of 0% was utilized for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 as the plan was 
frozen in 2012. 

There were no contributions paid to the Plan during the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024. 

At June 30, 2025, the projected benefit payments for future fiscal years were estimated as follows: 
 
    

2026      $  1,873,000 
2027     498,700 
2028     1,111,800 
2029     762,800 
2030     779,600 
2031-2035     2,681,500 
  $  7,707,400 
 
At June 30, 2025 and 2024, all Plan assets supporting the Bank’s defined benefit plan are held at fair value and represent Level 1 
classified investments. 
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The percentage of the fair value of total Plan assets for each major category is as follows: 
 
      

      June 30, 2025      June 30, 2024   
Cash Equivalents   2.6 %   2.8 % 
Equities       

Large Cap    33.4 %   30.0 % 
Mid Cap    7.1 %   7.9 % 
Small Cap    2.4 %   2.1 % 
International    7.7 %   7.6 % 
Other    20.3 %   22.8 % 

Alternatives/Multi-Asset    2.1 %   2.8 % 
Fixed Income       

Government Securities   9.3 %   9.3 % 
Corporate Bonds   12.9 %   12.6 % 
Mutual Funds    2.2 %   2.1 % 

      
Total    100.0 %   100.0 % 

 
The Bank’s investment policies and strategies for the Plan use target allocations for the individual asset categories. Current allocations are 
all within policy guidelines. The Bank’s investment goals are to maximize returns subject to specific risk management policies. 

The Bank anticipates making at least the minimum required contribution in fiscal year 2026. 
 
NOTE 16 – Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss 

The following table sets forth the ending balance in accumulated other comprehensive loss as recorded on the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheets for each component as of: 
 
       

      June 30, 2025      June 30, 2024 
Accumulated pension actuarial loss  $  (655,412) $  (710,544)
Deferred taxes related to accumulated pension actuarial loss     1,522,485     1,522,485 
Unrealized net loss on securities available for sale     (3,484,755)    (4,394,179)
Deferred taxes related to unrealized net loss on securities available for sale     (544,633)    (544,633)
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss  $  (3,162,315) $  (4,126,871)
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The following table sets forth changes in accumulated other comprehensive loss: 
 
           

     Available for     Defined Benefit         
  Sale Securities  Pension Plan  Total   
Balance, June 30, 2023  $  (6,063,133)    470,530  $ (5,592,603) 
Other comprehensive income before reclassifications, net of tax     455,783    957,573     1,413,356  
Amounts reclassified from other comprehensive loss, net of tax     —     52,376     52,376 *
Net current period other comprehensive income     455,783     1,009,949     1,465,732  
Balance, June 30, 2024     (5,607,350)    1,480,479     (4,126,871) 
Other comprehensive income before reclassifications, net of tax     909,424    55,132    964,556  
Net current period other comprehensive income     909,424     55,132     964,556  
Balance, June 30, 2025  $  (4,697,926) $  1,535,611  $ (3,162,315) 

 
* - This amount is included in the computation of net periodic pension income. 
See Note 15, Defined Benefit Pension Plan, for additional details. 
 
NOTE 17 – Commitments and Contingencies 

In the normal course of business, the Company is involved in various legal proceedings. In the opinion of management, any liability 
resulting from such proceedings would not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial statements. 

The Company is party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of 
its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit, financial guarantees and standby letters of credit. They 
involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of amounts recognized on the consolidated balance sheets. 

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for commitments to 
extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual notional amount of those instruments. The Company uses the 
same credit policies in making commitments and issuing letters of credit as they do for on-balance-sheet instruments. 

A summary of the contract or notional amount of the Company’s exposure to off-balance-sheet risk is as follows: 
 
       

      June 30, 2025      June 30, 2024 

Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk:           
Commitments to extend credit to borrowers  $  20,513,480  $  20,609,251 
Sold loan commitments  $  5,109,322  $  4,137,465 
Credit card commitments  $  439,211  $  445,124 

 
Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the 
contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many 
of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future 
cash requirements. The Company evaluates each customer’s credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, 
if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral 
held varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property and equipment, and income-producing commercial properties. Credit 
card commitments are unsecured. 

As of June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024, the Company does not engage in the use of interest rate swaps, futures or option contracts. 



TEB BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 

  35 

NOTE 18 – Concentrations 

Practically all of the Company’s loans and commitments have been granted to customers in the Company’s market area, generally 
Southeastern Wisconsin. Although the Company has a diversified loan portfolio, the ability of its debtors to honor their contracts is 
dependent on the economic conditions of the counties surrounding the Company. The concentration of credit by type of loan is set forth in 
Note 5. 

As of June 30, 2025, the Company presents the following information regarding deposit concentration in its consolidated financial 
statements: 

Certificates of deposit due in one year or less: Certificates of deposit with a maturity period of one year or less account for approximately 
99% of outstanding certificates of deposit and 48% of total deposits. These certificates of deposit primarily consist of funds placed by 
customers for a fixed period, with the understanding that withdrawals may be subject to penalties if made before maturity. The significant 
concentration of certificates of deposit with a relatively short time horizon poses certain risks. 

While these depositors have historically maintained their deposits with the Bank, a significant withdrawal by these depositors could 
impact the Company’s liquidity and financial stability. The Company actively monitors and manages this concentration risk through its 
liquidity management strategies. As discussed in Note 13, the Bank has over $111 million of liquidity available to borrow through the 
Federal Home Loan Bank. Additionally, over 90% of the Bank’s deposits are covered by FDIC insurance.  See Note 12 for further deposit 
information. 

NOTE 19 – Regulatory Capital Requirements 

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal and state banking agencies. Failure to meet 
minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possibly additional discretionary, actions by regulators that, if 
undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank’s consolidated financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the 
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of 
its assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and 
classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk-weightings, and other factors. 

The community bank leverage ratio (“CBLR”) provides a simple alternative measure of capital adequacy for electing qualifying 
depository institutions. Under the CBLR, if a qualifying depository institution elects to use such measure, such institutions will be 
considered well capitalized if its ratio of Tier 1 capital to average total consolidated assets (i.e. leverage ratio) exceeds a 9% threshold, 
subject to a limited two quarter grace period, during which the leverage ratio cannot go 100 basis points below the then applicable 
threshold, and will not be required to calculate and report risk-based capital ratios. This is a more stringent guideline than that defined by 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of a well-capitalized institution which is a tier 1 leverage ratio of 5%, a tier 1 
risk-based capital ratio of 6% and a total  risk-based capital ratio of 10%.  

The Bank elected to begin using the CBLR for the quarter ended March 31, 2020 and intends to utilize this measure for the foreseeable 
future. Eligibility criteria to utilize the CBLR includes the following: 

 Total assets of less than $10 billion, 

 Total trading assets plus liabilities of 5% or less of consolidated assets, 

 Total off-balance sheet exposures of 25% or less of consolidated assets, and 

 Cannot be an advanced approaches banking organization. 
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As of June 30, 2025 and 2024, the Bank was categorized as well capitalized. Listed in the table below is a comparison of the Bank’s 
actual capital amounts with the minimum requirements for well capitalized banks, as defined above. 

            

  June 30, 2025  
       To be Considered   
  Actual  Well Capitalized   
      Amount      Ratio      Amount      Ratio   
As of June 30, 2025            
CBLR Framework            

Tier 1 capital (to average assets) (i.e., leverage ratio)  $  31,001,528   9.67 %     28,856,667    9.00 % 
 
            

  June 30, 2024  
       To be Considered   
  Actual  Well Capitalized   
  Amount      Ratio      Amount      Ratio   
As of June 30, 2024                
CBLR Framework            

Tier 1 capital (to average assets) (i.e., leverage ratio)    32,276,675   9.65 %    30,092,330   9.00 % 
 
 
A Wisconsin state-chartered savings bank is required by state law to maintain minimum net worth in an amount equal to at least 6.0% of 
its total assets. At June 30, 2025, the Bank’s net worth was $27,903,895 and general loan loss reserve was $2,609,444, totaling 9.5% of 
total assets, which meets the state of Wisconsin’s minimum net worth requirements. At June 30, 2024, the Bank’s net worth was 
$28,179,485 and general loan loss reserve was $2,700,366, totaling 9.2% of total assets, which meets the state of Wisconsin’s minimum 
net worth requirements. 
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